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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

          3  Good afternoon, everybody, and welcome to the

          4  Subcommittee on Planning, Dispositions and

          5  Concessions, the Subcommittee of Land Use of the New

          6  York City Council.

          7                 Today's date is Tuesday, October

          8  23rd. My name is Dan Garodnick, I'm the Chair of

          9  this Committee. I'm joined today by Committee Member

         10  Sara Gonzalez and Vincent Ignizio, and also, of

         11  course, Council Member Melissa Mark-Viverito of

         12  Manhattan and the Bronx.

         13                 Let me just say that we're going to

         14  move expeditiously through the agenda today, because

         15  Council Member Ignizio, who is a new father of a

         16  one, or a day and a half, day year old?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: Two days.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Two day year

         19  old is on his way back to Staten Island to take care

         20  of his new daughter, so we are going to move right

         21  into it. And congratulations to him, of course, on

         22  behalf of all of us.

         23                 First item is Land Use No. 534, which

         24  is in the district of Council Member Melissa

         25  Mark-Viverito. This is Colon Plaza. Manhattan
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          2  Community Board 11. As I introduced it, if you want

          3  to just start making your way up, Ms. Clark, and

          4  your entire -- the folks, the developers I

          5  understand are here.

          6                 C070513 HAM. And this is for the

          7  development of a seven-story mixed use building that

          8  is tentatively known as Colon Plaza, and with that,

          9  that's all I will say. I will let you all introduce

         10  the item and present it, and then we will see if

         11  there are questions or comments or colleagues or

         12  anybody else wishing to testify.

         13                 So, Ms. Clark, you know the drill.

         14  Please introduce yourself and go ahead.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Thank

         16  you, Council Member Garodnick. I'm Carol Clark,

         17  Assistant Commissioner, HPD. I am joined on my right

         18  by Holly Leicht, the Associate Commissioner for New

         19  Construction, Ed Poteot and Candy Vasquez, who

         20  represent the developers on LU 534, known as Colon

         21  Plaza.

         22                 It consists of the proposed

         23  disposition of three vacant City-owned lots for

         24  development under the New York State Homes for

         25  Working Families Program. The developer is going to
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          2  speak about the construction of the seven-story

          3  building which will provide 54 units of rental

          4  housing for low-income and formerly homeless

          5  occupants. Plus one unit for a superintendent.

          6                 The project will also have ground

          7  floor commercial space and community facility space,

          8  a landscape open space, indoor recreation space and

          9  laundry facilities.

         10                 Council Member Viverito and HPD and

         11  the development entity have had dialogue on this,

         12  and she has indicated the support to us. But I would

         13  like to ask the developers to represent the drawings

         14  for you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         16  Welcome. If you can just introduce yourselves before

         17  you get started, I will note that we've been joined

         18  by Council Member Inez Dickens. And with that,

         19  please go right ahead.

         20                 MS. VIVES-VASQUEZ: Hi. Good

         21  afternoon. My name is Hilda Candy Vives-Vasquez. I'm

         22  the Executive Director to the 116 Block Association.

         23  We're a not-for-profit community-based organization

         24  located at East Harlem on 115th Street.

         25                 We have been serving the community

                                                            6

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  for over 25 years, the organization, and we provide

          3  services to the community. We have also done two

          4  different development sites: Section 202 for the

          5  senior citizen under the HUD Administration, and

          6  also a community sponsor, Section 8 multi-family

          7  based on 115 as well on Madison Avenue.

          8                 Anything else you would like to know?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         10                 Do you have anything else you would

         11  like to add on this?

         12                 MR. POTEOT: Sure. My name is Ed

         13  Poteot, Vice President of Horsford and Poteot

         14  Realty. We, with Candy's organization, will be the

         15  developers for the project.

         16                 I first want to talk about some of

         17  the specifics of the project. It's a 54-unit

         18  project. The total project cost is roughly $15

         19  million. It's heavily-subsidized through a

         20  combination of HFA funds and DHCR funds. We want to

         21  thank the Councilwoman for helping us get those

         22  funds. She was very instrumental with getting the

         23  funding for the project.

         24                 Also, the level of affordability,

         25  this is at 60 percent of AMI. A hundred percent of
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          2  the units will be at 60 percent of AMI.

          3                 And lastly, I just wanted to speak

          4  about the green elements in the project. The project

          5  will have a green roof, and also a back yard space

          6  of about 2,000 square feet for the tenants, and also

          7  the members of the Block A Association.

          8                 So, with that being said, we are

          9  done. And if there is any questions that you have,

         10  please feel free to ask them.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         12                 I know that there is going to be

         13  comments, questions from Council Member Melissa

         14  Mark-Viverito. Let me just, just to clarify a couple

         15  of points, this is three vacant lots as I understand

         16  it; is that right?

         17                 MR. POTEOT: Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And what is

         19  being proposed is a single seven-story building,

         20  which would span across those three lots; is that

         21  right?

         22                 MR. POTEOT: Right. Here is a

         23  rendering of the building, that it sits on the

         24  corner of Madison Avenue and 115th Street, and it

         25  does span those three vacant lots.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. And this

          3  building creates 55 residential units.

          4                 MR. POTEOT: Right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Which would be

          6  available to only individuals who earn up to 60

          7  percent of AMI; is that right?

          8                 MR. POTEOT: Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And is that a

         10  restriction that continues into perpetuity?

         11                 MR. POTEOT: Well, yes. The building,

         12  when it's done, will be owned by the Block A

         13  Association. So, thinking obviously it's a

         14  non-profit owner, and that their interest is to have

         15  it owned and be a low-income project in perpetuity.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: That's their

         17  interest.

         18                 My question to you is what if the

         19  Block Association decided to sell this property at a

         20  later date, are those restrictions built in, I guess

         21  is my question, to the terms of this agreement?

         22                 MR. POTEOT: Sure.

         23                 As of right now the terms of our

         24  funding call for it to be low income for 30 years.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thirty years.
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          2  Okay.

          3                 MR. POTEOT: So, after 30 years,

          4  assuming that some of us will be here, then that's

          5  something that needs to be revisited at that time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And the other

          7  question I had for you was the selection of the

          8  developer partnership here, what was the process

          9  that HPD went through to select you all? Or perhaps

         10  that's a question best directed at HPD.

         11                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEICHT: My

         12  name is Holly Leicht. I'm the Associate Commission

         13  for New Construction at HPD.

         14                 The way that we work when there is

         15  competitive funding, the programs that Carol and Ed

         16  described that are paying for this from DHCR, are

         17  competitive state-funding programs. So, what we did

         18  is we gave the 116th Street Association a contingent

         19  site control letter so that they were able to apply

         20  to the State for that funding.

         21                 Had they not gotten that funding,

         22  then they would have lost site control, but since

         23  they did get the funding, that is how they were

         24  designated for this.

         25                 So, we prefer always to do
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          2  competitive processes but on cases where we're not

          3  doing our own RFPs, we will allow contingent site

          4  control for another competitive process. We do that

          5  both for State and federal funding.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: So, does that

          7  mean, just so I understand the process for

          8  contingent site control, so that was something that

          9  was granted to 116th Street Association, and then

         10  they conducted the process; is that right?

         11                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEICHT: They

         12  then applied to the State, and actually I think on

         13  two rounds, didn't get the funding the first round,

         14  came to us again to ask for contingence site

         15  control, which we did grant, and then they were

         16  awarded a State fund on the second round.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, got it.

         18                 So, this is a process that is

         19  basically where 116th Street Association applies to

         20  DHCR --

         21                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEICHT: That's

         22  right.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: For the

         24  funding in order to do what you need to do; is that

         25  right? Okay, all right. I think I have it straight
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          2  now.

          3                 Okay, so with that, I think I've

          4  asked my end of it.

          5                 Shall I turn to Council Member

          6  Dickens first and then we'll -- Council Member

          7  Dickens.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you so

          9  much, Mr. Chair.

         10                 I have a question, and that's about

         11  the retail. There is one retail space, how much

         12  square feet, and how much per square foot is the

         13  asking price?

         14                 MR. POTEOT: The space is on 115th

         15  Street and Madison Avenue, right now it's 2,000

         16  square feet. As of right now our tenant for that

         17  space will be the community board. The local

         18  community board, Community Board 11.

         19                 So, we're talking with DCAS now about

         20  the lease terms for that space.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Oh, all

         22  right. So, then it's not going to be open to the

         23  public?

         24                 MR. POTEOT: As of right now, no.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: All right,

                                                            12

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  because that was my concern. As long as the

          3  Community Board is protected, there's no problem. I

          4  just have a concern about the indigenous area

          5  businesses being allowed to remain there.

          6                 I am familiar with this organization,

          7  as I am with you, Mr. Poteot, and I support the fact

          8  that it's a 60 percent AMI, which I think is great.

          9  It's something that in the City Council we fight

         10  for. Often times my colleague, your Councilperson,

         11  Melissa Mark-Viverito fights for 50 percent of AMI

         12  but we're happy, usually, if we can get 60 percent

         13  and 100 percent is great. And I have spoken with my

         14  Council Member to see if she was supporting it,

         15  because that also impacts on how I vote, to see how

         16  my Council member colleague supports something like

         17  this. And this is a great project, from what I

         18  understand, because of the commercial being for the

         19  community board, and obviously that would be

         20  affordable.

         21                 Let me ask you, let me go back to

         22  that commercial space. If they decide not to take

         23  it, the Community Board, if DCAS does not take it,

         24  and/or they move out, then you would put it on the

         25  public sector; is that correct?
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          2                 MR. POTEOT: Correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: All right.

          4  And then what would be, or have you thought about

          5  what the per square foot cost would be? Would they

          6  also, would the indigenous business be responsible

          7  for build-out, and does that include HVAC?

          8                 MR. POTEOT: Sure.

          9                 Candy, if you could speak to your

         10  thoughts about having a bank in there, and about how

         11  that part of East Harlem is now under-banked?

         12                 MS. VIVES-VASQUEZ: Sure. Originally,

         13  what we were looking at at that site there, before

         14  we put the community board, is East Harlem past 87th

         15  Street does not have a bank over on Madison Avenue

         16  in about over, I guess many years.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: A bank you

         18  said?

         19                 MS. VIVES-VASQUEZ: A bank, right, on

         20  Madison Avenue. And that way, considering the fact

         21  that we're having a lot of development being put up

         22  in that district area is pretty inconvenient, you

         23  know, within that district area to have, not to have

         24  a bank accessible to the tenants in the area.

         25                 So, with that, we needed to have East
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          2  Harlem, on Madison in East Harlem is something that

          3  we need also, not just on Second, First and

          4  Lexington Avenue.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: So, you're

          6  saying that you have done outreach to a bank; is

          7  that my understand?

          8                 MS. VIVES-VASQUEZ: We started to

          9  speak to one of the local banks in the community,

         10  and, so, until we have this in place, and

         11  considering what we were looking at, the Community

         12  Board, and where they were going to be placed at

         13  from the original plan, you know, of course, now

         14  that's on hold.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Well, I'm

         16  going to ask my colleague about this, but if you

         17  don't get a bank or if the bank wants only a part of

         18  that 2,000 square feet, then I would hope that you

         19  would look at helping the indigenous area businesses

         20  to be able to remain viable within the community,

         21  but that would also mean you're visiting the budget

         22  in order to allow for the rents to be reduced.

         23                 I'm going to ask my colleagues,

         24  because that's very important to me about the area

         25  businesses.
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          2                 All right, thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you,

          4  Council Member Dickens.

          5                 Now Council Member Ignizio.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: Thank you

          7  very much. And great supporters in both Inez and

          8  Melissa, and both the Council Members ought be

          9  commended for that.

         10                 My question is similar to what the

         11  Chairman's question was, and this is more aimed at

         12  HPD, which is what does happen after 30 years if the

         13  owners at that point decide to sell just this fee

         14  simple? And what protections are in place, and/or

         15  can be in place. You know, 30 years sounds like a

         16  long time when we're sitting in this room, but it

         17  all goes very quickly and, you know, what built-in

         18  mechanisms, or can there be built-in mechanisms to

         19  protect the fact that this is being built for

         20  affordable housing and are maintained such?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: It's a

         22  good question. And, really, there isn't a specific

         23  answer about what will happen. Our experience has

         24  been with this kind of funding over a 30-year period

         25  where HPD has been developing these kinds of
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          2  low-income projects with State funds, that they do

          3  remain in low-income use, because indeed, as you

          4  know well, that is a stock of housing that we're

          5  trying hard to protect in this City. But I think

          6  your point is well taken, in terms of examining

          7  other needs that might be put in place. But I'm sure

          8  it's something we can think about and colleagues

          9  have something to add.

         10                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEICHT: The

         11  other thing is that the apartments enter rent

         12  stabilization, and so that is a helpful mechanism.

         13  It's not monitored by us, it's monitored by the

         14  State, but that also is not attached to the funding.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: Okay, thank

         16  you very much. I was unaware of the rent

         17  stabilization scenario there, and, you know, just

         18  would encourage us going forward to look at those

         19  and perhaps deed restrictions or whatever else is

         20  available to us to assure that when you build

         21  something, the public is putting in money for

         22  certain things, they get that well throughout the

         23  lifespan of the loan itself.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very
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          2  much. Now Council Member Mark-Viverito.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Thank

          4  you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Thank

          6  you, Council Member Garodnick and all of my

          7  colleagues, for the questions that you've asked.

          8                 And, you know, I do come here today

          9  to be supportive of this project, but I also want to

         10  be clear that it hasn't been easy. And I'm glad that

         11  you do recognize the efforts that we've engaged in

         12  from the Council and my office, in particular to

         13  really advocate for this project to happen.

         14                 When I came into this position three

         15  months in, in speaking to HPD, the 116th Street

         16  Block Association had site control of this lot for

         17  over five years, and you were on the verge of losing

         18  the site control because the funding had not come

         19  from the State.

         20                 So, the advocacy of my office, I want

         21  to also commend Assemblyman Vito Lopez at the State

         22  level, because he really did hear my plea in asking

         23  for additional support from his end with DHCR, so we

         24  were able to secure it.

         25                 So, having said all that, you know,
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          2  there was no intention on my part to undermine this

          3  project, and unfortunately that was some kind of the

          4  message that I had been getting from the community,

          5  and that really concerns me.

          6                 The other aspects here, there is two

          7  things that I have concern. One is a positive, not a

          8  concern, one is a good thing, the fact that this

          9  project will involve a permanent site for Community

         10  Board 11, which is currently located on one of those

         11  lots as it is, and so the fact that they will be

         12  there and coming back is very important.

         13                 One of my major points of contention,

         14  and I think HPD is very much aware, my community is

         15  very much aware, that I'm an incredibly strong

         16  advocate for community gardens. I'm a very small

         17  advocate for open space. I think that we need more,

         18  not less. One of these lots is a beautiful community

         19  garden that has been there for over 30 years. Very

         20  vital. It's very beautiful, very lush, and I think

         21  HPD is fully aware. And my disappointment here comes

         22  at the fact that, you know, conversations did not

         23  emerge to try to come to a better place with the

         24  gardeners, and the gardeners will be displaced. I

         25  understand there has been conversations and we are
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          2  going to get some level of support from you guys in

          3  helping us find relocation and relocate these

          4  gardeners.

          5                 But these are institutions within our

          6  community that are very important in this time,

          7  where there is so much development and so much

          8  over-development. So, that's my major point of

          9  contention. But I am glad to see the low-income

         10  aspect.

         11                 My concern, as everybody knows as

         12  well, I'm a strong housing advocate, so the

         13  permanency issue is something that we would like to

         14  see in a commitment, and so far in terms of the

         15  other projects that 116th Street has been involved

         16  in, there has been a commitment. So, we look forward

         17  to ensuring that this is low-income in perpetuity,

         18  and that it really serves a population that is in

         19  need.

         20                 And lastly, with regards to what my

         21  colleague Inez has mentioned, with regards to

         22  whatever additional commercial space is available,

         23  that we really work diligently to make that space

         24  economically available to our community. We have a

         25  lot of non-profits, we have a lot of small
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          2  businesses that are being displaced, again because

          3  property values and commercial rents are incredibly

          4  on the rise. So, to whatever extent we can have

          5  local organizations that our developers within our

          6  community really work to address that, we need to be

          7  very diligent about that and very responsible.

          8                 So, that's the kind of ongoing

          9  relationship and conversation that I look to have. I

         10  want to thank my colleagues for the questions

         11  they've asked, and despite my reservations, I do

         12  support this project and I ask my colleagues to vote

         13  in favor.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you,

         15  Council member.

         16                 We also have, unless there are other

         17  questions here, we have one additional individual

         18  wishing to testify on this item from Manhattan

         19  Community Board 11, so I'd like to give him a

         20  chance. George Sarkissian.

         21                 Mr. Sarkissian, if you could just

         22  come right on up, and whenever you're ready. Just

         23  make sure that the button is pushed, or not pushed,

         24  whichever one it is that makes your voice nice and

         25  loud.
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          2                 MR. SARKISSIAN: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: You got it.

          4  Introduce yourself.

          5                 MR. SARKISSIAN: My name is George

          6  Sarkissian. I thank the Chairman, Council Member

          7  Mark-Viverito, Council Member Dickens. I'm District

          8  Manager of Community Board 11. I'll be speaking on

          9  behalf of our chair Robert Rodriguez and Manhattan

         10  Community Board 11.

         11                 On behalf of Manhattan Community

         12  Board 11, I would like to convey our full support of

         13  the proposed affordable housing development referred

         14  to as "Colon Plaza," to be located at 55 and 57 East

         15  115th Street, and 1753 Madison Avenue.

         16                 Our Community Board voted unanimously

         17  to approve the ULURP without condition in 2007, with

         18  37 members voting in favor, and no votes against or

         19  abstaining.

         20                 Colon Plaza proposes to develop 55

         21  residential units of low-income housing, built to

         22  accommodate households below 60 percent of area

         23  median income.

         24                 As you are aware, the City's Housing

         25  Subsidy Programs target households based on an area
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          2  median income measurement that includes more

          3  affluent suburban communities.

          4                 These skewed numbers make it

          5  difficult to develop housing, which is truly

          6  affordable to the local community, especially in

          7  East Harlem where the average household income is

          8  $22,000 a year.

          9                 The development of Colon Plaza

         10  provides our community residents a much needed

         11  opportunity to rent truly affordable housing, and

         12  will help prevent families from being priced out of

         13  a rapidly developing community.

         14                 Community Board 11's offices are

         15  currently located in the HPD-owned building which

         16  will be demolished on the proposed development site.

         17                 We have been working closely with the

         18  developers of Colon Plaza, HPD and DCAS to

         19  temporarily relocate our Board's office during

         20  construction, with plans to come back to a new,

         21  modern, permanent space for our Community Board in

         22  Colon Plaza.

         23                 During their June 2007 ULURP

         24  presentation to our Board, the development team

         25  committed to providing us with more than 2,000
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          2  square feet of already fit out space to be occupied

          3  by our Board office.

          4                 We look forward to working closely

          5  with all parties throughout the next two years in

          6  preparation for our return to the site.

          7                 Also included in the site to be

          8  developed at Colon Plaza is a community garden

          9  located at 1753 Madison Avenue, which has been

         10  designated for development by the 2002 New York

         11  State Attorney General's agreement.

         12                 To accommodate those residents that

         13  are regularly using the garden, an alternate garden

         14  location has been offered only 150 feet away. Called

         15  the La Cuevita Garden, this alternate garden is

         16  rarely used, its gates almost never opened, and is

         17  actually larger than the current garden at 1753

         18  Madison Avenue.

         19                 We believe this proposition will make

         20  more use, active use, of a garden that is unused,

         21  and free up a garden slated for development to

         22  accommodate desperately needed affordable housing.

         23                 We hope to continue to work with HPD

         24  in the City to build more housing which is truly

         25  affordable to our residents, based on our

                                                            24

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  community's income distribution. With Colon Plaza,

          3  we are fortunate to have partners in that effort.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Sarkissian.

          7                 Council Member Mark-Viverito for some

          8  final comments.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO: Thank

         10  you for your comments, but I just want to take issue

         11  with what you mentioned about the gardens.

         12                 You know, my office is very

         13  diligently working, we're not looking to reduce

         14  garden space, we're looking to expand garden space

         15  in our community, so to kind of target one garden

         16  for another I don't think is the right approach and

         17  I would like the Community Board to play a more

         18  active role in the preservation of our community

         19  gardens.

         20                 Thanks.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         22                 And we thank you all for being here.

         23  That is our last individual wishing to testify on

         24  Land Use No. 534.

         25                 Thank you very much for being here.
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          2  So, we'll close the hearing.

          3                 MS. VIVES-VASQUEZ: Thank you. I'd

          4  just like to say thank you also for your time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

          6  Thank you for being here.

          7                 We're closing the hearing on Land Use

          8  534, and we're opening the hearing on Land Use

          9  Number 543 to 545, and I'd like HPD to come on back.

         10  These are related items, known as the Melrose

         11  Commons site. C070506 HAX, in Bronx Community Board

         12  1, the district of Council Member Maria del Carmen

         13  Arroyo. Whenever you all are ready, this is for the

         14  facilitation of the development of an eight-story

         15  mixed use building that will tentatively be known as

         16  the Melrose Commons.

         17                 So, with that, take it away.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Thank

         19  you, Chairman Garodnick. I'm Carol Clark, again,

         20  from HPD, and I'm joined by Ted Weinstein, who is

         21  the Director of our Bronx Planning Office, who will

         22  testify on these items.

         23                 MR. WEINSTEIN: Thank you. As stated,

         24  there are three related ULURP actions for this

         25  project known as Melrose Commons Cornerstone Site B
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          2  1. It consists of, the first action is the

          3  disposition of three vacant City-owned lots, and

          4  part of the air rights over a fourth lot. It's

          5  located at Third Avenue East 158th Street, 3100,

          6  3106, 3120 Third Avenue and 507 East 158th Street.

          7  It's part of Melrose Commons Urban Renewal Area Site

          8  17.

          9                 The proposed development team was

         10  called -- it's a result of an RFP, the proposed

         11  development team, called "Team Melrose," consists of

         12  a local non-for-profit, active in Melrose Commons

         13  Nos Quedamos, along with L&M Equity Partners,

         14  Proceda Development and Melrose Associates.

         15                 The building will be an eight-story

         16  building. It will have 96 cooperative units, plus

         17  one unit for a superintendent. The building will

         18  also provide 8,985 square feet of ground floor

         19  commercial space, 1,637 square feet of a community

         20  room, and 1,246 square feet for community facility

         21  space.

         22                 There will be an underground parking

         23  garage with 80 spaces and 2,818 of landscape court

         24  yard.

         25                 The other two ULURP actions related
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          2  to this are number 544, is a special permit to allow

          3  for development over a railroad line. There is an

          4  abandoned railroad line that runs through Melrose

          5  Commons below grade, the City owns the air rights

          6  over it, it runs along side this, and the zoning

          7  resolution requires that any time you develop or do

          8  anything over a railroad line, including an

          9  abandoned railroad line, you need a special permit

         10  from the City Planning Commission.

         11                 The last item, number 545, involves a

         12  change in the zoning map. The entire block is

         13  currently zoned R8 with a C14 overlay. We're

         14  proposing that the overlay in the back of the

         15  project site be removed so it will just be

         16  residential, and it wouldn't be commercial on that

         17  side, on the Brook Avenue side of it.

         18                 Council Member Arroyo has reviewed

         19  the project and has indicated her support for it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, that's a

         21  lot of stuff. Let's just talk about it one at a

         22  time.

         23                 We've got three actions, right? We've

         24  got the disposition of three lots and the air rights

         25  of a fourth; is that right?
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          2                 MR. WEINSTEIN: Correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: A special

          4  permit for development over an abandoned, is this an

          5  abandoned railroad line, you said?

          6                 MR. WEINSTEIN: Yes, legally

          7  abandoned.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And can you

          9  just describe exactly how that works? I mean, is the

         10  railroad line running right through the City, one of

         11  the City's three lots?

         12                 MR. WEINSTEIN: This was a railroad

         13  line. It was a single track line that ran through

         14  the South Bronx. At the time that the Melrose

         15  Commons Urban Renewal Plan was adopted in 1994, it

         16  was still an active line. And, so, as it goes

         17  through Melrose Commons, it's below grade, it's like

         18  an open trench as it goes through.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Right.

         20                 MR. WEINSTEIN: And then goes

         21  underneath the cross streets. Because the railroad

         22  was still active in 1994, the City, under the Urban

         23  Renewal Plan, the Urban Renewal Plan provided for

         24  the City to acquire only the air rights over the

         25  trench, because the railroad continued to run.
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          2                 And, so, in 1998, when the actual

          3  vesting took place, the City took title to the air

          4  rights, it's 15 feet, ten inches above where the

          5  tracks were.

          6                 Subsequent to that, the railroad

          7  stopped running, and several years back it was

          8  legally, declared legally abandoned by the federal

          9  agency that does that. I'm not remembering exactly

         10  which agency that is. So, we own the air rights over

         11  it. It runs, in this particular project site,

         12  alongside like between the project itself and the

         13  sidewalk.

         14                 The zoning resolution requires that

         15  any time that you do anything over a railroad right

         16  of way, including abandoned, you need to apply for a

         17  special permit to show that there will be no

         18  negative impact from what is being planned. And such

         19  findings were filed along with the ULURP

         20  application.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: No negative

         22  impact on the railroad?

         23                 MR. WEINSTEIN: It's abandoned.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: So there

         25  really couldn't be any negative impact?
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          2                 MR. WEINSTEIN: Right.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. And then

          4  the last piece was the change in zoning to eliminate

          5  the commercial portion of the R8 district; is that

          6  right?

          7                 MR. WEINSTEIN: Right. The entire

          8  block is R8 zoned with the commercial overlay but

          9  they really plan on having the retail space only --

         10  it actually is on Third Avenue, 158th Street, and

         11  the back of it is on Brook Avenue, but the

         12  commercial space will be only on 158th and on Third

         13  Avenue. There won't be any commercial space in the

         14  back on the Brook Avenue side.

         15                 What actually ended up happening was

         16  there is a specific section in the zoning resolution

         17  that requires a rather unique combination of

         18  circumstances where you have an R8 zone with a

         19  commercial overlay using quality housing program and

         20  the mixed use building, that the building is

         21  required to be built right to the property line. It

         22  would have been too close to the trench of the

         23  railroad line at that point. They were planning on

         24  having it recessed somewhat, and so the way to

         25  resolve the problem is by eliminating the commercial
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          2  overlay in the back, which wasn't going to be used

          3  anyway, it eliminates the applicability of that

          4  particular section of the zoning resolution.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. So, then

          6  this will be the development of an eight-story

          7  building which would be 96 residential units that

          8  will also include commercial space in a community

          9  facility; is that right?

         10                 MR. WEINSTEIN: Right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, and the

         12  developer, Team Melrose you called them?

         13                 MR. WEINSTEIN: Well, there was an

         14  RFP, L&M, who was an active developer within the

         15  South Bronx, Proceda is as well, Nos Quedamos is the

         16  local advocacy group from Melrose Commons and

         17  Melrose Associates are some of the people involved

         18  with the development team.

         19                 They got together to respond to the

         20  RFP. This was actually proposed as four separate

         21  sites. The other three already in construction.

         22  They've already been through ULURP. This one was

         23  held back, so now we're going through ULURP to

         24  complete it. And, so, they got together to have the

         25  best proposal, I guess they could put together, by
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          2  joining different developers.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. So, it's

          4  a multi-part group, but it was a competitive process

          5  to get there, okay.

          6                 MR. WEINSTEIN: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, seeing

          8  no other comments or questions on Land Use 543, 544

          9  and 545, we're going to close the hearing on those

         10  three items, and we're going to move on to our next

         11  grouping, which are New Foundations and TIL issues.

         12                 Next one is Land Use 559 and ULURP

         13  No. 20085079. This is a 2334 Tilden Avenue in

         14  Brooklyn, part of the New Foundations Program, in

         15  the district of Dr. Matthew Eugene.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Thank

         17  you, Chairman Garodnick. I am joined now by Terry

         18  Arroyo, HPD's Director of Land Use.

         19                 LU 559 consists of the proposed

         20  disposition of one City-owned vacant lot, located at

         21  2334 Tilden Avenue through HPD's New Foundations

         22  Program.

         23                 The proposed developer, Prime Time

         24  Building Corporation, will construct one

         25  three-family home for sale to an eligible purchaser.
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          2                 Council Member Eugene reviewed the

          3  project and has indicated his support.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Prime Time

          5  Building selected how?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Through

          7  a competitive process for New Foundations RFP.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And the

          9  three-family home will be available to whom?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: To an

         11  eligible purchaser who will pay for the property and

         12  then will, in fact, rent out two units to help them

         13  with their home ownership responsibility.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And the units,

         15  is there any restriction as to whom they may rent

         16  those units for the purposes of --

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Not in

         18  the New Foundations Program, no, sir.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Seeing no

         20  other members of the public wishing to testify on

         21  this item, Land Use 559, we'll close the hearing on

         22  that. That's non-ULURP No. 20085079 HAK, and open

         23  the hearing on ULURP No. 560, non-ULURP No. 20085080

         24  HAK, four properties in the district of Council

         25  Member Darlene Mealy.
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          2                 Let me just take a step back, Land

          3  Use 559, I think you indicated that Dr. Eugene had

          4  indicated his support for that item; is that right?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes, he

          6  did, Chairman Garodnick.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you. And

          8  then we're now on Land Use No. 560. Four properties

          9  in Brooklyn, the District of Council Member Mealy.

         10                 Go ahead.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes.

         12  560 consists of the proposed disposition of four

         13  City-owned vacant lots located at 1915 Bergen

         14  Street, 2164, 2178 Dean Street, and 1633 St. Marks

         15  Avenue through HPD's New Foundations Program.

         16                 The proposed developer of the Housing

         17  Partnership for Debarr Development, will construct

         18  four three-family homes for a total of 12 dwelling

         19  units for sale to an eligible purchaser.

         20                 Council Member Mealy has reviewed the

         21  project and indicated her support.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you. And

         23  the same things would be true of this one,

         24  competitive bidding process again, yes?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

                                                            35

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  true, yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And also the

          4  no restrictions on to whom the additional units

          5  could be rented to as part of New Foundations?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

          7  correct.

          8                 We did get New York State Affordable

          9  Housing Corporation funds to help to subsidize this

         10  project, and also New York City capital monies.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay.

         12                 All right. Thank you. Seeing nobody

         13  else wishing to testify on Land Use 560 and

         14  non-ULURP No. 20085080 HAK, we'll open the hearing

         15  on Land Use No. 562, non-ULURP 20085082 HAX, one

         16  property in the Bronx in the district of Council

         17  Member Maria del Carmen Arroyo.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Right.

         19  LU 562 consists of the proposed disposition of one

         20  occupied City-owned building located at 690 Union

         21  Avenue through HPD's Tenant Interim Lease Program,

         22  which we call the TIL program.

         23                 TIL assists organized tenant

         24  associations in City-owned buildings to purchase and

         25  manage low-income cooperatives.
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          2                 This project consists of three

          3  occupied residential units. Council Member Arroyo

          4  has been briefed and indicated her support.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. You said

          6  there is a resident in this building today?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Right,

          8  there are three occupied units. It's a three unit.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Oh, three

         10  occupied, sorry.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Three

         12  occupied units in this building.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Three occupied

         14  units and --

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: And

         16  there will be three once its fully renovated as

         17  well.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And it will be

         19  the same three?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

         21  those people.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And just to

         23  remind us, what will happen to this building

         24  process? Will anything happen to the building, or is

         25  this just a turnover to the organized tenancy to
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          2  purchasing matters? Anything happen in terms of

          3  rehab or anything like that?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: For the

          5  rehabilitation period, the tenants will be moved out

          6  of the building in order that the rehab can be

          7  carried out, and then they will be moved back in if

          8  it's complete.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And who does

         10  the rehab?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: HPD

         12  does the rehab in this case.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And what will

         14  be the rehab period?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Usually

         16  about 12 to 18 months. With this being a smaller

         17  building, it's liable to be on the faster period.

         18  It's undergoing the renovation now, so it will be a

         19  period of approximately 12 total months and they'll

         20  be moving back in shortly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Just go ahead

         22  and introduce yourself.

         23                 MS. ARROYO: Hi. I'm Theresa, Terry

         24  Arroyo from HPD, Intergovernmental, Director of Land

         25  Use.
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          2                 With TIL generally when we come to

          3  the Council to seek approval, the properties are

          4  already undergoing rehab. And this particular

          5  property, we are hopeful that if we obtain Council

          6  approval, we will be able to, rehab will be

          7  completed by November with the Certificate of

          8  Occupancy, and we can move the tenants back in in

          9  time for the holidays. That's our goal.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Great. Now,

         11  where are the tenants now? Where have you put them?

         12                 MS. ARROYO: The program allows for --

         13  what happens is when you have a TIL building and

         14  it's already completed and sold, any vacant units in

         15  that building are used for -- used by tenants that

         16  we relocate from other TIL buildings that are

         17  undergoing rehab.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: So, you happen

         19  to have other TIL buildings which have vacancies.

         20  So, the tenants of 690 Union Avenue are currently

         21  relocated to another TIL building?

         22                 MS. ARROYO: In another TIL building.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Seeing no

         24  other questions or comments, I'm closing the hearing

         25  on Land Use 562, non-ULURP 20085082 HAX. Opening the
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          2  hearing on Land Use No. 564, non-ULURP No. 20085084

          3  HAX at 1347 Bristo Street in the Bronx, in the

          4  district of Council Member Foster.

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes, LU

          6  564 consists of the proposed disposition of one

          7  occupied City-owned building, located as you said,

          8  at 1347 Bristo Street through the TIL program.

          9                 TIL again assists organized tenant

         10  association and City-owned buildings to purchase and

         11  manage low-income cooperatives. This project

         12  consists of 23 residential units. Council Member

         13  Foster has been briefed and indicated her support.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         15                 Seeing no one else on this item,

         16  we'll close the hearing on Land Use 564 and

         17  non-ULURP 20085084 HAX, and open the hearing on Land

         18  Use No. 568 and non-ULURP 20085089 HAM, 631 Academy

         19  Street in Manhattan in the district of Council

         20  Member Martinez.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes, LU

         22  568 consists of the proposed disposition of one

         23  occupied City-owned building located at 631 Academy

         24  Street through the TIL program. Again TIL assists

         25  organized tenant associations and City-owned
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          2  buildings to purchase and manage low-income

          3  cooperatives.

          4                 This project consists of 23

          5  residential units. Council Member Martinez has been

          6  briefed and has indicated his support.

          7                 This particular project is 96 percent

          8  complete in terms of its rehab construction.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         10                 Seeing no one else on this item,

         11  we'll close the hearing on Land Use No. 568 and

         12  non-ULURP 20085089 HAM, and open our hearing on the

         13  last item of the day, ULURP Number 569, non-ULURP

         14  20085090 HAX. It is at 639 East 169th Street in the

         15  Bronx, in, again, the district of Council Member

         16  Foster.

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes, LU

         18  569 consists of the proposed disposition of one

         19  occupied City-owned building, located, as you said,

         20  at 639 East 169th Street through the TIL program,

         21  which assists organized tenant associations in

         22  City-owned buildings to purchase and manage

         23  low-income co-ops.

         24                 This project consists of 14

         25  residential units. Council Member Foster has been
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          2  briefed and indicated her approval.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 Seeing nobody else on this item,

          6  we'll close the hearing on Land Use No. 569,

          7  non-ULURP 2008509 HAX, and we will couple together

          8  all of the items that we heard today on today's

          9  calendar for the purposes of voting and lay over the

         10  rest, at the request of the individual members in

         11  whose districts the properties sit, and the Chair

         12  recommends an aye vote on all the items that we

         13  heard today, and I will ask the Council to call the

         14  roll.

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair

         16  Garodnick.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Aye.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         19  Gonzalez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Aye.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         22  Dickens.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Aye on all.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         25  Ignizio.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: Aye on all.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of

          4  four in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

          5  abstentions, the aforementioned items are approved

          6  and referred to the full committee.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: We thank you

          8  everybody very much for being here, and with that,

          9  this hearing is adjourned.

         10                 (Hearing concluded at 1:51 p.m.)
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